
 
General Business                                         Lower Saucon Township                                               March 7, 2007 
& Developer Meeting                                     Council Minutes                                                            7:00 P.M. 
 
 
I. OPENING 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township  Council 
was called to order on Wednesday, March 7, 2007 at 7:01 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, 
PA, with Mr. Glenn Kern, Council President, presid ing.    

   
 ROLL CALL:  Present – Glenn Kern, President; Thomas Maxfield , Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, 

Sandra Yerger and Ron Horiszny, Council Members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Assistant 
Township Manager, Leslie Huhn; Brien Kocher, Township Engineer; Township  Solicitor, Linc Treadwell;  
Township Planner, Rick Tralies; and Jr. Council Member, Vanessa Segaline.   

  
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

 
 

Mr. Kern said Council met in Executive Session this evening  prior to the meeting to discuss the 
Jennifer Wyatt litigation and to discuss potential acquisition of property.  

  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURE 
 
 Mr. Kern said for citizen agenda items – Council operates under Robert’s Rules.  What that means is 

during agenda items, Council will talk amongst themselves and amongst staff and the interested parties.  
At the conclusion of that, we open it up to the public for public comment.  There is an opportunity for non-
agenda items at the end of the meeting to discuss whatever your business might be.  We do have a 
microphone and there are microphones up at the table. There is a sign-in sheet in the back of the room.  
Please print your name and address and email address.  It is very helpful in transcribing the minutes.  For 
those who want to receive emailed agendas, please give your email address to Diane, Leslie, or Jack or call 
the Township office.  Please state your name and address.  If you can’t hear, please let us know.  Mr. Kern 
asked if anything was taken off the agenda this evening?  Mr. Cahalan said no. 

   
II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 

  
A. RESOLUTION 38-2007 – RECOGNIZING THOSE WHO RESPONDED TO THE 

STRANDED VEHICLES ON I-78 DURING THE VALENTINE’S DAY SNOW STORM 
 

Mr. Kern said Resolution 38-2007 has been prepared to recognize the volunteers of the LST Fire 
Companies who responded to help motorists that were stranded on I-78 in Berks County during the 
Valentine’s Day snow storm. 
 
Mr. Kern said that particular night while he was sitting on his couch and watching the nightly news, 
several individuals from our township were out there on the scene helping the stranded motorists.  
This resolution has been prepared to honor those people.  Chris Snyder is here tonight.   
 
Mr. Kern read the resolution: 

 
 
 

 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 2 of 24 

RESOLUTION #38-2007 
PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING LOWER SAUCON  

TOWNSHIP FIREFIGHTERS FOR THEIR RESCUE EFFORTS  
ON FEBRUARY 15, 2007 

 
WHEREAS, as the result of the winter storm that dropped snow, sleet and freezing rain on Eastern 
Pennsylvania on February 14-15, 2007, massive numbers of vehicles were stuck along a 50 mile 
stretch of Interstate 78 in Berks and Lehigh Counties stranding hundreds of truckers and motorists 
in their vehicles on the highway for up to 20 hours; and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 15, 2007 firefighters from the Steel City, Southeastern and Leithsville 
Fire Companies, were dispatched to I-78 by the Northampton County Emergency Management 
Agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, these firefighters joined a team of 22 volunteers who were outfitted with sport utility 
vehicles, rescue trucks and snowmobiles and, under the direction of Chief Chris Snyder of the Steel 
City Fire Company, were directed to Berks County areas of I-78 to distribute food and provide 
medical assistance to these stranded motorists; and 
 
WHEREAS, using their snowmobiles to snake through the stalled traffic, these volunteers handed 
out much needed food, water and fuel to the motorists, and were able to free several vehicles with 
occupants who needed medical attention; and 
 
WHEREAS, the unselfish efforts of these volunteers to reach the stranded motorists and provide 
them with food and water during this event should be recognized and commended as it  typifies the 
willingness and dedication of our Lower Saucon Township emergency personnel who are always 
ready to respond in the event of an emergency. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED  the Council of Lower Saucon Township, Glenn 
Kern, President; Thomas Maxfield, Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, Council Member; Sandra 
Yerger, Council Member; Ronald Horiszny, Council Member; does hereby commend the efforts of 
these firefighters on February 15, 2007.      
 
ADOPTED and ENACTED this 7th day of March, 2007. 
 
Chris Snyder thanked Council for recognizing the efforts of the team.  He was fortunate enough to 
be the leader of the team, but they had many great volunteers from the Township, surrounding 
townships, all joined together to make an effort out there. It was nice to see a big team from 
Northampton County be represented and be able to help in the efforts.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of Resolution 38-2007. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. deLeon 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

B. PUBLIC HEARING & CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION – ORDINANCE 2007-09 – ACT 
40 – REALTY TRANSFER TAX 

 
Mr. Kern said ordinance 2007-09 has been prepared and advertised to amend the collection of the 
Realty Transfer Tax. 

 
 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 3 of 24 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to open the hearing. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
 Mr. Cahalan said this is an ordinance that was brought to Council previously and they authorized 

the adoption.  This was recommended by the State Department of Revenue.  What they are trying 
to do is to bring uniformity into all of the municipal ordinances dealing with the collection of the 
realty transfer tax and get a uniformed system so that each municipality has the same formula for 
the collection that coincides with the state.  They are bringing our ordinance up to date and in 
uniformity with the state.  

 
 Mr. Kern asked if there were any comments?  Mr. Horiszny said on page 3, the first line, paragraph 

g, there’s an extra apostrophe after is that we don’t need.  Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience 
had any comments?  No one raised their hand. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to close the hearing. 
SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for adoption of Ordinance 2007-09 
SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS 
 

A. ZONING HEARING BOARD VARIANCES 
 

1. LISA SOLTYSIAK – 3927 LOWER SAUCON ROAD – VARIANCE REQUEST TO 
CONSTRUCT BARN IN REQUIRED SETBACK AND TO ALLOW FOR TWO 
DRIVEWAY ENTRANCES 

 
Mr. Kern said the applicant is requesting a variance to construct a barn on their property 
and to create two driveway entrances. 
 
Present – Peter DeMayo and his fiancé, Angie Dulaney; Attorney Zelechiwsky; and Lisa 
Soltysiak.  
 
Mr. DeMayo gave a presentation.  He said they just relocated from Fort Lauderdale .  
They’ve been living here for about a year.  He wanted to move back here since 1989.  He 
went to school at DeSales.  It’s just a beautiful area.  They take pride in their house and 
they do things the right way.  He’d be happy to provide neighbor references, upon request.  
The reason they need the barn is the house does not have a garage.  The house does not 
have a basement with standing room.  The house was built prior to 1820 and there are 
beautiful stone walls and to try to put an addition on, he’d hate to spoil that beauty.  His 
goal was always to build a barn.  They found Lisa’s house and it’s a beautiful farmhouse, 
Grist Mill, but doesn’t have a barn.  He figured he could erect one as he fell in love with 
the house.  The barn will compliment the house and neighborhood.  The closing is 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 4 of 24 

scheduled for March 25. Some history…it’s a historic Grist Mill built prior to 1820.  It was 
converted into a general store in 1912 by John P. Kunsman.  It’s written up in a book, 
Chapter 6, and is one of the six landmarks in the Township.  Lisa did a phenomenal job 
over the past two years restoring it.  He talked to one neighbor who’s lived next door for 72 
years and he said when he was a kid, there were three barns on the property.  Both of his 
neighbors have a barn.  He showed a picture of the house and he showed where the barn 
would go.  They got with Chris Garges and asked him what they could do feasibly.  After 
several meetings, he told them for impervious structures, they can’t, for earth disturbance 
go above the 8,512 square feet.  With the house, the smokehouse and the driveway and the 
new barn, they are still at 5,500 square feet and 3,000 square feet off from where they need 
to be.  They have had verbal conversations with the neighbors and everyone was well 
received.  When he originally submitted a picture of the barn, they didn’t like that one, but 
found a better one.  On the front, there will be a porch.  The barn is not as big as you think 
it’s going to be.  The windows on the picture will not be there.  When you hear the property 
is 34’ x 40’, it’s not, it’ll be smaller than that.  He showed the actual layout of the barn.  
There’s four ways to build a barn and they decided to do it the old fashioned way to 
compliment the house.  It’s going to be 100% post and beam.  He showed an actual piece 
of wood that the barn will be built out of.  It’s wood siding, cedar, pine or poplar.  It will be 
kept natural wood.  They don’t know about the roof yet, but it will be to code as the entire 
barn will be to code.  They don’t like to do things outside of code.  Why the driveway…it 
makes sense for the barn location.  It leads to the back.  The driveway is a horseshoe 
driveway.  If they have the driveway one way in, it’ll be hard to make a sharp turn and get 
in.  It just makes sense to have the horseshoe here.  Their barn builder is John McFarland 
from Tohickon Timber.  He’s been building barns for thirty years.  He’s a barn and old 
house historian.  He’s the guy who’s called in when people want to restore an old barn and 
architects call him in.  He’s the expert on these things.  The barn will not be used for 
commercial use, agricultural, no horses, and no third party storage space.  In summary, 
they promise to build a beautiful barn that preserves the look of the house in the 
neighborhood.  It will be done right.  Everyone is welcome to come.  They are going to 
have a true Amish barn erection.    

 
Ms. Lisa Soltysiak said she has been working on this for over two years and she’s sure the 
DeMayo’s will be continuing to work on it for a long time as old homes are like a money 
pit.  The problem with the lot is it’s very long and it’s very narrow.  There’s not much 
space to put a barn.  There was an old barn on the property when she obtained it and it was 
caving in with an existing foundation underneath it.  There really is no other spot as the 
septic is on one part of the back yard and that is the only space to build. It would be a very 
difficult property to sell without a garage or some sort of barn on it.  She’s asking Council 
to keep these thoughts in mind upon making a decision.   
 
Mr. Maxfield asked if you provide access to the neighbor’s barn through your driveway.  
Mr. DeMayo said correct.  Mr. Maxfield said he likes the idea of the barn, but he is not 
crazy about the horseshoe driveway.  To him, it seems problematic.  He didn’t quite 
understand the necessity of the horseshoe driveway.  That bothers him.  It’s not listed on 
the variance at all.  Mrs. Yerger said she agrees with Mr. Maxfield.  She travels that road 
all the time and knows how tight it is there.  She’s a little concerned about the driveway 
and that’s her only concern.  Mr. DeMayo asked what side of the driveway were they 
concerned about or just the horseshoe in general?  Mr. Maxfield said the drive doesn’t 
really stop on the left side, it continues onto the property that is shared.  That to him, makes 
sense.  It should stay as it is … definitely historic.  It’s the other side and very close to the 
other driveway.   
 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 5 of 24 

Mr. Kocher said the plan labels it as existing.  Mr. Maxfield said it was probably the right 
side of the driveway was recently altered.  Chris Garges said yes.  Mr. Maxfield said the 
left side has been there forever.  The right side is new.  Mrs. deLeon said isn’t there a law 
that you aren’t allowed to have two driveways anyway?  Attorney Treadwell said yes, 
that’s why they requested a variance.  It’s listed as a circular driveway, but there’s not a 
reason for it.   Mr. Maxfield said in order to avoid the backing up issue, there are other 
ways to address that than a circular drive.  There could be a small “T” area there.  Mr. 
Kocher said the normal way to handle that is to put one driveway in with a “T” so you can 
back in and go back out.  It’s usually a good idea and the reason is to limit the amount of 
openings on to the highway because when you are driving down the road, if there’s 
driveways all over the place, you don’t know where the cars are going to come out.  That’s 
why they try to keep it to one opening.  Mr. Kern asked if that was an issue for Mr. 
DeMayo.  Mr. DeMayo said personally he likes the U shaped driveway, but if the barn is 
okay, he’ll be okay to have a straight driveway to the back.    
 
Mr. Horiszny said No. 11 you are talking about .08 acres, it’s really more like .9 acres?  
Mr. DeMayo said the .08 is from he County’s records.  It should be .8, not .08 acres.   
 
Attorney Treadwell said the applicant has agreed to take the variance request away for the 
second driveway entrance.   
 
Council will take no position. 

 
2. T-MOBILE – VILLAGE LANE – VARIANCE REQUEST TO CONSTRUCT CELL 

TOWER 
 

Mr. Kern said the applicant would like to discuss with Council the requests they were 
presented with at a previous Council meeting. 
 
Attorney Schock was present.  He said Council should have received a letter outlining what 
would happen with the various tower choices and also photographs.  You have three 
choices…you have the wooden pole, the tree pole, and you have the metal pole painted to 
look as close to the wooden pole as we can get.  The difference in the options are the 
wooden pole and the metal pole , without the tree appendages, are roughly the same 
diameter.  With the wooden pole, you only have the potential for one extra carrier.  With 
the metal pole of the same rough diameter, you have the potential for two extra carriers 
because it’s metal, not wood.  With the tree pole, you get a diameter that’s twice as much 
as the wooden or metal pole because you have to hold the appendages and the antennas, but 
you have the ability to get the second carrier on.  Practically speaking, with the trees, the 
height, etc., he wouldn’t count on someone coming in at 40’.  He showed pictures of the 
wooden pole and the tree pole.  It doesn’t seem to make a difference either way because of 
the way it blends in.  The metal pole could be painted fairly close to make it look like a 
PPL pole.  If anyone has any preference, they’ll go with that. 

 
Mrs. deLeon said she likes the pole.  Mr. Kern asked if  the metal pole you could get 
another carrier on?  Attorney Schock said you can get two additional carriers on the metal 
60’ pole.  The diameter of the metal, without the tree appendages, comes pretty close to the 
wood pole.  They can make it look like wood.  Mr. Maxfield asked if any trees would be 
removed?  Attorney Schock said according to the plan, it appears there will be three or four 
trees removed.  Mr. Maxfield said when the real trees are leafed out, you’ll never see the 
pole.  He asked if you don’t have to do any alteration of the trees anytime in the future for 
transmission of the signal?  Attorney Schock said no, they should not have to.  He will 
confirm it.  Typically they do it because they don’t like to go back.  Mr. Maxfield said it 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 6 of 24 

looks like from the pictures that the pole is less obtrusive than the fake tree.  Mr. Horiszny 
said he’d disagree.  You don’t show the antenna arrays on these poles.  Attorney Schock 
said no, there is.  If you look at the top of the wood pole, you can see it on top.   The wood 
would have wires down the outside, but the metal pole they would be inside.  The wood 
pole is solid and that’s the reason the tree pole is larger also as you have the antennas and 
needing the extra strength for the false tree appendages.  Mr. Kern said he thinks for this 
spot, the metal pole is probably the best bet as far as number of carriers and internal wires.  
They would like to go with the brown metal pole.  Attorney Schock said to keep it at a 
reasonable diameter, you have to do it so you can get one more carrier on the wood because 
you run the wires outside and you only have space feasibly to put two of the cable arrays to 
make it look like a utility pole and the metal pole of roughly the same diameter, he couldn’t 
be exact until it was designed but he thinks you could get two and paint it to look as close 
to this as we can get.  Mr. Maxfield and Mrs. deLeon agreed with Glenn.  They like the 
metal pole.  Mr. Horiszny said do we need a variance that the metal poles have to be silver?  
Attorney Schock said he thinks it says brown below the tree line.  He looked and said it 
actually says painted green up to the level of the trees.  They are silver except for green up 
to the level of the trees.  Mr. Kern said brown would be better.  Council agreed.  Mr. 
Maxfield said if that’s the case, that’s a variance we should support.   

 
Attorney Treadwell said it’s a motion to not take a position with regard to all the variances 
except the one that changes the color of the pole from the ordinance requirement to brown 
and that Council would support that variance provided that the pole is a metal pole painted 
to look as close as possible to the PPL wood color.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to not take a position as stated above by Attorney Treadwell. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 
 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  Ms. Danell 
Fowler and her neighbors were present.  She said they do not support this.  You’re 
camouflaging this because it’s ugly.  It’s aesthetically unpleasing.  It’s going to depreciate 
the value of the ir property.  They never would have moved into the neighborhood had that 
been there.  They are worried about many things and are hoping that Council doesn’t let 
this happen.  They didn’t get around to the neighbors to get a petition as they thought it was 
on the agenda March 19.  They are rallying to get people to come to the meeting on March 
19.  They have children and are not happy with it.  Ms. Wendy Kuhns had a letter to give to 
Council.  She said the reason the neighborhood does oppose is mainly the depreciation of 
property and resale value.  They have talked to a few realtors and it will happen.  Another 
thing is the fall zone.  She doesn’t know if there are any wires supporting this tower.  She 
does know, for a fact, that they have fallen and they are supposed to fall upon themselves, 
but there were three instances where they had fallen and one right from the base.  It was a 
manufacturer defect, but you don’t know that.  They are concerned as the houses are so 
close.  Also, the electronic magnetic field they are worried about.  You don’t know 20 
years from now if there will be a problem.  It would be aesthetically unpleasing.      

 
Attorney Schock said with respect to the structural capability, it’s designed to meet the 
standards in the industry, and candidly, you’re probably more likely to have a PPL wood 
structure that’s been there a long time more susceptible to a failure than a newly designed 
structure.  This is permitted where these folks live.  Mrs. deLeon said back in the late 
1990’s, Council wasn’t reviewing applications as they came in for the ZHB.  It was 
because of a cell tower issue that they insisted the Manager inform Council.  They started 
putting all these things on their agenda and they created an ordinance. You can’t restrict 
them in the township.  You have to allow them.  The site they are proposing this is allowed 
in our zoning because you can’t prohibit them.  Attorney Treadwell said you can’t 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 7 of 24 

completely prohibit them.  You have to allow them in certain areas.  This is one area, when 
we adopted the ordinance, it was permitted.  Mrs. deLeon said they have to meet whatever 
the requirements of our ordinance and they did take into consideration the fall zone.  This 
about the third or fourth time this has been on our agenda.  They wanted to put it down 
where the boats are on 378 and that was denied because of the fall zone.    
 

Ms. Kuhns asked why is this the perfect place?  Mrs. deLeon said she’s not saying this is 
the perfect place.  You will have an opportunity to go before the ZHB and they are the 
ultimate deciders.  Mr. Kern said we review it before it goes to the ZHB and we can 
support, oppose or take no action.  Mrs. Yerger said you need to be there the evening of the  
ZHB meeting.  As far as the fall zone, that has been something that has been addressed.  
Her understanding is that the fall zone is completely within the property of the owner.  
Attorney Schock said they moved it so that they have taken any habitual structure outside 
of that range.  They still do need relief from the neighbor to the west.   Attorney Treadwell 
said to put it in simple terms, if it falls, it won’t hit a house, but it could hit T-Mobile’s 
owner’s garage or the neighbor’s garage.  Attorney Schock said they always point out the 
PPL structures are made out of wood also.   

 
Mr. Maxfield said 60’ is the smallest cell phone tower applicant we have had.  Mrs. deLeon 
said the township can provide the residents with the ordinances on cell towers.  Mr. Kern 
said we are residents like you.  If we could say no, we would, but we can’t.  It’s a permitted 
use in the zoning.  What we did was restrict that as much as we possibly can because we 
are residents like you are.  We don’t want this thing, but we have to permit it.  They 
initially came in with a 90’ tower, and we objected vehemently to that tower and they 
brought it down to 60’.  If you have a preference as to what you’d like this to look like, let 
us know.   

 
Ms. Kuhns asked if it could be put on any existing cell towers? Attorney Schock said if 
they could go on anywhere, they would as it would be a lot less out of their pocketbook.  
You didn’t have the benefit of the three previous meetings and they’ve been put through 
the ringer in terms of working this thing out.  Council has done a lot to help you out.  Mrs. 
deLeon said they should give Leslie their email addresses and she will send out an agenda 
to them.  The past six months, the minutes are on the internet site.   

 
Mr. Dan McGillis, neighbor, asked in regards to the type of cell tower, how it would look, 
any suggestions on where they could look to educate themselves on the different types of 
cell towers that are available, pros and cons of each of the different types?  Attorney 
Schock said he would suspect if you ran a search on the internet, you’d be able to find sites 
on there and there is a tree pole on Evergreen Drive if you want to take a look at it.  Mrs. 
deLeon said when the ordinance was drafted a couple of years ago, they looked into the 
health issues and did extensive research into drafting that ordinance.  Mr. McGillis said this 
past November during elections, one of the topics was the open space act, increasing taxes.  
He voted for that increase.  He sees this as encroachment on an open space.  You are 
putting a structure there that is not pleasing and it’s going to be decreasing home values.  
Yes, there are homes there, people want to put sheds up, but you are putting an ugly 
looking pole in the area.  He feels that the tax for open space is not working in this 
instance.  Mr. Kern said unfortunately, cell towers are a permitted use in the area and if 
they could have said no, they would have said no.  Mrs. Yerger said we are governed by 
the MPC that’s handed down from the state.  The state says we must provide for certain 
things in certain zones and one of those things is cell phone towers.  We have to abide by 
that.  That’s our governing rules.  We just can’t say, no, we don’t want any cell phone 
towers anywhere in our township.  No matter what our personal opinion is about them, we 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 8 of 24 

must provide for them.  We have to provide for a lot of things we don’t like.  They too are 
governed by the MPC handed down by the State.    

 
Mr. Kern said we have to enable the use of adult book stores, that’s part of the law, so 
would have to figure out what part of the township would be most appropriate to 
accommodate that.  Mr. Kern said we just had a major victory because the FAA wanted to 
put a tower up on the mountain in your neighborhood which was a big huge, spinning 
array, bowtie FAA tower which would take out two acres of trees in addition to being this 
huge structure that spun.  We actually took on the Federal Government and won.  Mrs. 
Yerger said we are trying.  Mrs. deLeon said we always try to encourage co-location if 
there is an existing tower there.  If we didn’t have this ordinance, they could come in and 
put them wherever.  Ms. Kuhns said if their neighbor did not agree to have this on his 
property, would they have to look for another place?  Mr. Kern said yes.  Ms. Kuhns said 
he doesn’t live there.  Mr. Kern said he owns the property.  Regarding the electronic 
magnetic field of the tower, is it radio frequency?  Attorney Schock said it is called electro 
magnetic frequency admissions what comes from the tower and there are requirements set 
by the FCC into the maximum level.  They are less than the maximum level.  Even if you 
wanted to deny on us on that basis, no one could do anything about that issue as long as 
they meet that standard and your ordinance requires us to meet that standard.   

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

3. BRUCE & SHARON ROGORA – 4220 LOWER SAUCON ROAD – VARIANCE 
REQUEST OF WOODLAND DISTURBANCE 

 
Mr. Kern said the applicant would like to discuss with Council the proposed remediation 
plan. 
 

Bruce Rogora, applicant was present.  He said  he is under a misunderstanding.  He thought 
it was Mr. Maxfield said last time Mr. Rogora could submit a letter saying he had no 
additional comments on your remediation plans and it would just be submitted to the 
zoning board, but in his communication with the Zoning Officer, he said Mr. Rogora had to 
show up tonight.  Mr. Maxfield said he doesn’t recall that.  You are publicly saying you 
agree with the recommendations?  Mr. Rogora said he understands the recommendations. 
He is having people  review the recommendations.  He’s contacted for the infiltration, 
somebody about what need to be done about that.  The trees are not a major issue and he 
would personally like to propose that he be able to substitute some evergreens for some of 
the shade trees.  Mr. Tralies said he wouldn’t have a major issue as long as it was 
coordinated through their office.  Mr. Rogora said the ZHB meeting is on March 19.  Mr. 
Maxfield said it will go to the ZHB with the recommendations from Council.   

 
Draft Staff Recommendation for Bruce & Sharon Rogora Variance Request 

February 7, 2007 
 

The Council of Lower Saucon Township requests that the Zoning Hearing Board deny the 
applicants variance requirements unless the applicant complies with the following: 
 
1. The reforestation recommendations in the January 26, 2007 Boucher & James 

letter. 
2. Design approval and installation of the proposed infiltration contained in the 

February 1, 207 Hanover Engineering letter. 
 
 
 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 9 of 24 

MOTION BY: Mr. Kern moved for support of the draft staff recommendation above. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

4. PIERPONT SLATER PROPERTIES (WARNER) – ROUTE 378 – PROPOSED 
BANK 

 Present – Andy Warner, Greg Feinberg, and Engineer, Paul to help explain his proposed 
bank.  Attorney Treadwell said Council does not have anything in front of them regarding 
this project.  Mr. Warner said it’s a development on the corner of Colesville Road and 378.  
Mr. Feinberg, Counsel for the developer, said they are looking at it as a proposed site 
development plan for Colesville Road and 378 corner.  It is a proposed bank site.  The 
footprint of the building exists in the center of the site.  The dotted lines you see represent 
an infiltration system that is required for drainage on the site which is an underground, in 
ground infiltration system.  What they are addressing, and will be requesting variances for, 
are setbacks for parking which will be off of 378 for several of the space as well as 
setbacks off of Colesville Road.  Because of the nature of the dimensions of the lot, and 
because of banning requirements and needs for parking, in terms of customer parking in 
front of a bank building.  The setting of the building and how it is positioned on the lot, as 
well as the drive through requirements that are on the backside of the building, require the 
positioning of the building as it sits on the lot and the parking in the manner as opposed to 
have to put the parking in the back area which would then interfere with the drive through 
area and also conflict with what banks typically are looking for in terms of customer 
parking in the front so the visibility and carrying money out of the bank is the nature of the 
banking business.  Another aspect of the variance relates to riparian way.  They were in 
front of the EAC last evening and had discussions regarding the designations of the riparian 
way which Boucher & James has identified in that area which you see Paul pointing to.  
That is not our lot.  The very small end of it tips on our lot, but the vast majority of that lies 
on the neighbor’s lot, however, there is a 100 foot buffer that is required for any riparian 
way designation.  That 100 foot buffer is along the line that you see Paul pointing to and 
would significantly impair the use of the lot rendering it useless.  What we discussed with 
the EAC and will be requesting from the ZHB, is a variance allowing them to construct 
within that 100 foot buffer with certain understandings.  The long and short of our 
conversations are that we have wild life plantings designated in that area Paul is pointing 
to.  The area is a ditch that currently exists as a drainage ditch that currently exists on the 
edge of Colesville Road and he’ll call it an unfinished ditch.  It is not necessarily clean or 
well cut or well maintained in any manner, so it is their intention, in the course of 
excavation of this parcel to clean up that ditch and refine it and then to seed it appropriately 
with wild life grasses, at the suggestion of the EAC, and they fully agree with that, to 
properly maintain and address that area as well as the entire area to that side of the property 
that Paul is pointing to which is going to have wildlife plantings as well.  The nature of the 
riparian way and the buffer zone that is requested around it is to filtrate water and to 
address water flow into the riparian way so that it is water that is not properly infiltrated 
because the riparian way ultimately is intended to flow into the waterways.   To the best of 
their ability, they are going to control that runoff.  As they discussed last night, it is their 
contention that to a large degree, they’ll actually be controlling that flow into the riparian 
way in a better way then it is naturally existing today.  With that impervious surface, that 
they have around the bank now, and with the collection areas they have and the directed 
flows they’ll have as it’s re-excavated, you’ll see a better control of the flow into there.  
The water will go into the infiltration system.  They are slatted PVC piping and it’s going 
to infiltrate into the ground.  Then the excess will be a controlled outflow into the ditch on 
Colesville  which then filters over.  They will agree to a management plan being put in 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 10 of 24 

place so that those swales and incline areas on the side of the lot are properly maintained 
and manicured and they also discussed looking at the geology.  Mr. Maxfield had raised 
that issue last night and Mr. Feinberg didn’t have an answer.  Tonight in speaking with 
Andy, there was an examination of the geology of that site previously, about two or three 
years ago and it didn’t identify any characteristics that would be detrimental or problematic 
with the carbonate testing.  They will take another look at it, but the best they can tell, they 
think they are okay.   

 
Mr. Kern said he would agree with them that the manner of distributing the runoff would 
probably be improved by what they are saying, but he doesn’t know about the quality of 
the runoff.  You are talking about black top and car oil that is going to be introduced into 
an area that never had it before.  Paul, the engineer, said there will be a sump pump 
structure installed in the parking lots that makes sure the oil collects into this structure and 
they are maintained routinely by the property owner.  It’s all part of the maintenance 
program that has to be set up.  Mr. Maxfield said if the carbonate geology study shows that 
the infiltration is acceptable in that area, infiltration, if it works right, will also clear up 
some of the pollution.  Part of the EAC recommendation was that they encourage 
infiltration, but only contingent upon the carbonate geology study showing it was feasible.   

 
 Mr. Feinberg said one other matter they will be discussing is the principal use with respect 
to the billboard on the site which is located on the side.  Based on the township ordinances, 
with respect to principal uses with billboards, they would have the building and the 
billboard, which are two principal uses, and they will be asking for a variance to permit 
that.  They are working on the potential of moving that billboard and they are hopeful that 
will be a successful transaction. In lieu of that, they want the variance in hand.  The other 
item discussed last night, which is not a variance item, but something that Mr. Warner 
offered, is the construction of a township sign at the entrance which welcomes the public to 
Lower Saucon Township, with your review.    
 
Attorney Treadwell said assuming the ZHB gives you the variance for two uses, the  
billboard and the bank, would you agree to a condition that if in fact you are successful in 
relocating that billboard that another won’t go up on that location?  Mr. Feinberg said  
absolutely.  Mrs. deLeon asked if the parking spots are the width they are supposed to be?  
Mr. Feinberg said yes. 
 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any comments?  Mr. Marcus Brandt, resident 
said he was struck by the comment about the sump holding back oil that might drip and 
gather debris.  Oil floats on water.  It’s not going to work.  The almighty put waterways 
there and it’s pretty smart to pay attention to waterways.  When we start encroaching on 
them, ask the guys in New Orleans what happened.  It’s a bad policy.  Mr. Maxfield said 
they did not fully talk about the waterway last night at the EAC meeting…is it a ditch, a 
man made ditch?  Mr. Warner said the majority of it is a man made ditch.  It’s all fed by 
pipes going underneath Colesville Road as well as 378, and he’s owned the property for 
seven years, and well over 50% of the time, there is no water in it.  It really is dry most of 
the time.  Mrs. deLeon said if the ZHB says this is okay, it will have to be approved by our 
consultants. We are only approving the concept so you can make an application.  Attorney 
Treadwell said it’s not even approving the concept, it’s just taking a position one way or 
another regarding the variance.  Mrs. deLeon said she just wanted to make sure the 
residents understand we are not approving this.  Mr. Maxfield said the EAC letter is not out 
yet, and if we were to send this on, he’d like to recommend that we include the two 
recommendations of the EAC to the ZHB.  One would be the riparian plantings and 
management plan for that area and the other would be the infiltration subsequent to the 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 11 of 24 

carbonate geology study.  Mrs. Yerger said that will be fine, but it will be more contingent 
on Mr. Kocher’s review of the site.    

 
Mr. Kern asked Mr. Kocher how the sump would resolve the oil issue?  Mr. Kocher said 
it’s not so much the sump that resolves the oil issue, it’s what the snout that goes on the 
exit end of the drainage box that actually prevents what is floating on the surface of the 
water from getting to the pipe.  It’s a block. The only way for water to get into it is to be 
forced under it and out.  What’s floating on the surface doesn’t actually get in the pipe. The 
sump is there to collect debris, but it’s a sump in conjunction with the snout.  It stays there 
until it is physically removed.   

 
Mr. Warner said he’s been a township resident for nine years and doesn’t live far from the 
property.  He has young children and a lot of friends that live around here and he intends to 
take care of the property and will not let it fall in disrepair. 
 
Mrs. Yerger said you are going before the ZHB with a variance for relief from the riparian 
buffer, setbacks for the parking, and the two uses on the site. 
 
No action taken by Council, but with the two EAC recommendations.  Mr. Warner said the 
bank is Embassy Bank and they’ve done very well in the valley for themselves and are 
looking to expand.   

 
B. O’BRIEN’S FARM – MEADOWS ROAD – REQUEST EXTENSION TO COMPLETE 

IMPROVEMENTS 
 

Mr. Kern said the developer is requesting an extension to complete the improvements in this 
subdivision.  Hanover Engineering has contacted them outlining what remains to be done.   

 
Mr. Cahalan said this is a three month extension.  Mr. Kocher said they should be able to finish it in 
three months.  They are down to three driveway issues and a fence gate, all part of which was the 
original one.  They did contact the property owners with the driveways and the property owner 
didn’t respond, so this is a reminder to them to recontact them.  Mrs. deLeon said from some of the 
things she read on the inspection punch list, it seems like some of the work they’ve already done is 
not lasting. Mr. Kocher said the punch list you have in your packet is the older punch list, and 
they’ve done almost everything on it.  It’s been hanging around for five or six years, and eventually 
after you accept it and it’s a quality issue, they redo it.  Mr. Kern said this has been lingering for a 
real long time.  What happens in three months if we don’t grant an extension?  Attorney Treadwell 
said you don’t have to take over the roads.  Mr. Kocher said we’re down to a fence gate which is a 
pretty simple thing.  The complexity is the three driveways.  The developer didn’t install the 
driveways, the owners installed the driveways, but he’s still responsible right now.  That’s what 
makes it a little complex.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to grant the three month extension to complete improvements for 

O’Briens Farm. 
SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
 
 
 
 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 12 of 24 

V. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. AUTHORIZE NORTHAMPTON COUNTY TO COLLECT 2006 DELINQUENT TAXES 
 

Mr. Kern said Council should authorize Northampton County to collect the 2006 delinquent taxes 
in the amount of $28,608.25. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said this certifies the amount of uncollected delinquent 2006 taxes and authorizes the 
county to collect those delinquent taxes. 
 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval to authorize Northampton County to collect 2006 delinquent 
taxes. 

SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

B. HERITAGE CONSERVANCY PROPOSAL – REVIEW OF HISTORIC STRUCTURES 
 

Mr. Kern said Council directed the Manager to obtain proposals for the historic research needed to 
have the township owned historic structures listed on the National Register of Historic Places. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said Council asked him to get proposals from consulting firms for historic research 
work needed to obtain listings of the three historic sites in the township, the Heller Homestead, Old 
Mill Bridge and the Lutz Franklin schoolhouse.  He sent away to a total of four agencies asking 
them for proposals.  They were Heritage Consulting; Cultural Heritage Research Services in North 
Wales, PA; Noble Preservation Services in Zionsville and Wise Preservation Planting in Chester 
Springs.  He has received a proposal back from Heritage Consulting and he also received one from 
Cultural Heritage Research Services.  He spoke to Dave Kimmerly from Heritage Consulting and 
he went ahead and made a phone call to Carol Lee at the PHMC about these three sites.  He learned 
that the Heller Homestead has to be re-evaluated from a step one filling out of a Pennsylvania 
historic research survey, PHRS form to get a determination of eligibility.  If it is determined 
eligible, then it can go forward to the National Register process and can move forward.  Carol Lee 
said the Lutz Franklin schoolhouse, due to the inadequate documentation, also has to start with step 
one.  The Old Mill Bridge is okay as well as the Earhart Mill Historic district including the bridge 
remains listed on the National Register.  He asked these consultants to do basically step one work, 
which would be to fill out the PA Historic research survey form.  Due to the cost of both the Heller 
Homestead and Lutz Franklin, if it was done together, the cost would be over $4,000, so he would 
need at least two more quotations.  At this point, he only has one other quotation.  He has a 
response from Wise Preservation Planting.  They have indicated they will submit a proposal.  At 
this point, he can’t make a recommendation to Council for any action until he gets another 
quotation. 
 
Mrs. deLeon said she talked to these people recently and she doesn’t understand what the concern 
is.  Mrs. Yerger said it’s been a general policy of any application that was submitted more than 
several years ago, they are asking that they be redone.  The format has changed so much since the 
older applications.  Now they want a floor plan, interior, exterior and a whole lot more information.  
It’s been the policy of PHMC to ask that they go through the eligibility application process again.  
It’s a general policy throughout the state of PA.   
 
Mrs. deLeon said as a liaison she wished she would have been informed of this before the public 
meeting.  We should have more communication here, and in the future, she’d like to be notified of 
these things that affect the Heller Homestead.  Back in the fall, she did speak to everybody and 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 13 of 24 

nothing had changed from their submission.   Mrs. deLeon want to offer her assistance as she has a 
lot of background for the Heller Homestead.   
 
Mr. Kern needs a clarification on the Old Mill Bridge. He did receive a phone call from Carol Lee 
about a year ago.  The reason she called him was his house is in the Earhart Mill Historic  District 
and she asked him about the mill.  Being that it burned down, she informed him in all likely hood, 
his house would not be on the historic register as a stand alone structure because it was part of the 
historic district.  He never did get clarification as to whether or not the bridge was stand alone on 
its own, still on the register.  Is it on the register or does it need to be reapplied?  Mrs. Yerger said 
she guesses they won’t remove the designation that it’s eligible for the listing until they remove the 
district.  It has to be removed by PHMC, so until they go through that process of analyzing it and 
removing it, it is still eligible for listing on the National Register.  You have to wait until they go 
through their process.   
 
Mrs. deLeon said what about grants that might offset some of these costs?  Mrs. Yerger said it’s 
her understanding that the application process of these grants can’t be used for the actual 
application process.   
 
Mr. Cahalan asked the consultants to give a comparison to the task one cost that Heritage 
Conservancy came up with. 
 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any comments?  No one raised their hand.  
 
Council tabled this item until Jack gets back the rest of the quotes.    
 

C. DRAFT SNOW REMOVAL POLICY 
 

Mr. Kern said a draft snow removal policy has been prepared for Council’s review. 
 
Mr. Cahalan said there was a discussion about snow plowing at the last meeting and this has been 
something that he’s been pulling together with the Director of Public Works for some time.  He is 
giving it to Council for review.  It gives a real good compilation of all procedures in one place and 
also includes some information about damaged private property.  Roger Rasich has looked at it and 
there are a couple of changes they want to make on it.  He will bring it back to another meeting and 
his hope would be they could adopt the policy and have it publicized in the newsletters and on the 
website. 
 
Mrs. deLeon said she’s a fan of policy.  She read this, and wanted to know whose responsibility it 
was for fire hydrants?  Mr. Cahalan said it’s not in there and that’s a good point. It’s usually 
recommends that the residents dig out the fire hydrant if it’s in front of their property and he can 
add that.  
 
Ms. Stephanie Brown, Meadows Road, said they have a fire hydrant in the right-of-way and for 
years, somebody from the township came around and dug it out.  She’s curious to whatever 
happened to that when the township was sending an employee around to dig out fire hydrants.   
 
Chris Snyder said in their district, they go out and open the fire hydrants.  He said his concern, as a 
resident, he can understand snow falls naturally at a hydrant and has no problem going out and 
shoveling it.  However, when a township truck plows the entire cul-de-sac on top of a fire hydrant 
two to three feet deep, he is concerned about that.  He had no fire protection in front of his house 
and four other homes February 14 to March 4, which was when the snow finally melted enough so 
he could get out there and remove it.  He did try to shovel it and it was rock hard.  He was told that 
was the Water Authority’s responsibility.  He’d like to see the policy address that.   Mr. Kern said 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 14 of 24 

there should be a procedure in there instructing the plows not to plow in the fire hydrants. Mr. 
Snyder said when you plow, he doesn’t believe it’s necessary to plow into the curb, chip the curb, 
lift the plow up over the curb and then push it three to four feet.  The plows literally pushed the 
snow seven feet into his front yard into a flower bed.  Another neighbor, they literally hopped up 
over, they removed rocks, shrubbery and landscape bedding.  He has two shrubs on either side of 
this driveway where the curb is and they ripped the shrubbery out.  This has been going on for 
three or four years.  One time he had five feet of snow on his BMW over the hood which was 
spiteful.  They came out the next day and dug the car out.  Mr. Kern said if you do stake the 
property and damage is done to your property, the township is liable.   
 
Mrs. deLeon asked Mr. Cahalan to explain the disclaimer on the first page about the CDL 
restrictions.  Mr. Cahalan said that refers that there is a time limit on operation for CDL drivers.  
They must take a mandatory break after so many hours of plowing.  What this is speaking about, is 
there will be some occasions when you may not be able to get drivers back out on the road because 
of these mandatory CDL restrictions.  Mrs. deLeon said doesn’t that violate a law where there’s a 
restriction on CDL drivers that they can’t drive past a certain time period, can we say we might 
have to waive that?  Mr. Cahalan said we declare a snow emergency which does give us leeway for 
that restriction for township employees. 
 
Mrs. deLeon said you rely on the Police Department for notification of poor road conditions after 
work hours.  Mr. Cahalan said flooding, anything where a road has a problem.  Mrs. deLeon said 
she complained about the private property and now this policy says it is state law that the township 
has to actually touch the mailbox.  She is still getting complaints that the plow trucks were going 
too fast.  The faster they went, the harder the snow pounded into the yards and mailboxes.  Mr. 
Cahalan said he’ll look into the state law, but it is standard policy from PennDOT to every 
municipal operation.  Most of the mailboxes are in the right of way and if they get knocked over, 
it’s the residents responsibility unless they hit it with the plow, then they will submit it to their 
insurance carrier.  The response to the speed, he checked into that.  With the type of snow that fell 
that day with a combination of snow, sleet and rain, the plowing that had to take place, they had to 
go travel at a higher rate of speed because of the wet snow and the ice.  Mrs. deLeon said she 
doesn’t agree.  Mr. Kern said it was a unique type of snowstorm as it was chunks of ice berg type 
of ice.  It was boulders and it’s understandable if a plow is pushing a boulder and it hits a mailbox, 
the mailbox is going to give way.   There isn’t any way around that. 
 
Mr. Jim Stern, Wassergass Road, said the last year he’s had a solution to this mailbox problem.  
They have their mailbox coming up from a pipe going horizontal for a distance and swings and 
moves to the side and then he just puts it back.  Mr. Cahalan said what Mr. Stern is referring to is a 
recommendation and it’s a cantilever mailbox post.  You can swing it back.  He’ll put that in the 
newsletter and it’s a recommendation that people can follow if they see their mailbox is repeatedly 
being hit.  Mrs. deLeon said another complaint is that the cinders weren’t evenly distributed.   Mr. 
Cahalan said he’ll look into it.   
 
Mr. Maxfield said what policy do we have in the township for residents that have to remove snow 
from the sidewalks?  If somebody has a fire hydrant on their property, would that fall into the same 
type of snow removal responsibilit ies?  Fire hydrants are a real safety issue.  Maybe we could 
develop some sort of hydrant clearing policy because we may have residents who are elderly and 
might not be able to get out and get it cleared off.  He asked if we could develop something for 
next season for hydrant clearing.  Mr. Cahalan said yes he can.  Mrs. Yerger said the plows need to 
be aware of where the hydrants are so they don’t bury them.  Mr. Davidson said each one of the 
hydrants should have a whip on them to identify where there is a fire hydrant.  Mr. Snyder said if 
something could be developed, that would be great.   
 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 15 of 24 

Mr. Scott Fritzinger, resident, said he lives on Silver Creek Road and speaking of the snow plows, 
he doesn’t know if there is anything in there that addresses what’s happening to the macadam 
berms.  They live on Silver Creek Road where the drainage system is almost done being installed.  
That macadam was just put down six months ago at the intersection of Silver Creek and Reservoir 
Road and the plows have already pushed those and knocked them off.  He’d like to think the road 
crew goes around and inspects these things.  There are places where they have not been replaced.  
Mr. Cahalan said the road is inspected by Public Works.  There are some that do get worn down 
over time.  The roads are looked at, and if something is done by a plow operator, that will be 
replaced.  Mr. Fritzinger said maybe that could be included in this document.  Mr. Cahalan said 
probably in a road maintenance policy, which they will be working on, which is a separate type of 
thing.  Mrs. deLeon would like to see it in both places.  The crews should be aware of this.  Mr. 
Fritzinger said there are things on Reservoir Road that haven’t really been replaced.  Last winter 
some got knocked off and it hasn’t been replaced.  Mr. Cahalan said in reference to that, they had 
discussions with the school district about the storm water flows down in that area, and they have 
discussed the berm and made several suggestions and that’s been back and forth between their 
engineer and HEA.  They are aware the berm there has been avoided.  Mr. Fritzinger said he’s not 
talking about that, he’s talking about the other side of the road.  Mr. Maxfield said instead of 
addressing the replacement of it, we could ask the road crew during plowing that if they think they 
something has been hit or damaged to notate it and send it back to the township and then we can 
address it.  Mr. Kern said they can notate the roads that have the berms so the plows are more 
careful in the plowing.    
 
Mr. Cahalan will work on this and bring it back to Council.   
 

D. MEADOWS ROAD SPEED LIMIT AND TRAFFIC CONTROL EVALUATION 
 

Mr. Kern said at Council’s request, HEA has evaluated the speed limit on Meadow’s Road and the 
traffic control signage for the bridge on Meadow’s Road.  Brien Kocher will review this with 
Council. 
 
Mr. Kocher said they did take a look at the way the road is signed now and the approaches to the 
bridge.  The signage, as it exists down there, meets PennDOT’s regulations…the speed limits and 
the yield signs that are there now. Mrs. deLeon said we wrote a letter to PennDOT about the 412 
signs?  Mr. Kocher said PennDOT has approved that and they have sent the materials that the 
township needs to send back to PennDOT, so that’s in process.  Mr. Cahalan said a letter has been 
sent to Joe Raucher to indicate they’ll erect the signs.  As soon as it turns around when PennDOT 
signs off on the permits for that, they’ll put them up.  Mrs. deLeon said last time we talked about 
Map Quest.  Jack said he wrote to them and so did Stephanie Brown and he never got a response 
back from his email.   
 
Mr. Maxfield said this was addressed because of issues he brought up a couple of meetings ago. He 
wasn’t very happy about the recommendations in this.  He knows that PennDOT doesn’t always do 
what is the best for the situation.  There is a problem there.  We have a 25 MPH zone, but it’s 
basically unenforceable.  The report doesn’t address pedestrian traffic which is a problem.  He saw 
two small girls almost get hit on that bridge.  He’s been talking to Brien and he’d like to do 
something.  He still would like to propose that there is one stop sign next to the Meadow’s side of 
the bridge.  If something happens, he wouldn’t feel right not doing nothing.  We need to do 
something in the interim to address this area now.  Walnut Street will be opening up one day and 
we’ll do our one way.  Mrs. deLeon said can we tell the Meadows they can’t make a right hand 
turn?  Mr. Cahalan said we can ask them to put it up, but whether it’s enforceable or not, it’s on 
private property.  Mr. Maxfield said PennDOT would not go with the recommendation of 45 MPH 
on Easton Road even though there’s 120 driveways exiting on that road.  Main Street 
Freemansburg was a 35 MPH road according to PennDOT and everybody knows that is crazy.  



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 16 of 24 

Freemansburg went ahead and put up 25 MPH signs and it works and keeps the traffic down to a 
minimum speed and he thinks we can do the same thing.   
 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved that we install a stop sign on the Meadow’s side of the Meadows Road 
bridge and maintaining the yield sign on the other side will at least give us one direction of 
traffic where they will stop and slow down to make that stop and give people a little bit more 
time to look and see what’s going on there and allow for safe passage of traffic, based on 
HEA’s suggestion and review.   

SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 
Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  Mrs. deLeon said 
when you are coming down over the bridge, and you are going to be stopping, the bridge has a 
hump in it. It’s hard to see approaching cars.  Mr. Maxfield said the time he saw the two girls, 
he was in a Sedan and he was stopped and could not see that car at all and he could not see the 
little girls.  They were at a point on the bridge that when he came over the hill they were not 
visible.  At least if he comes to a complete stop, it gives a little bit more safety.   Mrs. Yerger 
said it’s not a long term solution, but giving a safety factor in there.  Ted Beardsley said if you 
are going to put a stop sign by the exit from the Meadows, that’s the low point, you can’t see 
anything coming the other way.  If you put the stop sign just a little closer to his house by the 
Meadow’s mailbox, there’s a little bit of a rise there.  When he approaches that bridge and he 
can’t see over it, that’s where he stops and slows down to look and see what’s going on.  It’s 
where you would stop if you would allow somebody to come across the bridge and turn into 
the Meadow’s.  Russell mentioned to him one time that he was going to put a sign up at the 
end of his driveway saying “no right turn”.  He never put the sign up.  Maybe you could put 
speed bumps there.  If you go to Riegelsville, the road that goes along the canal has speed 
bumps, so it can be done.  The other thing is that if you had “no left turn” where it meets 412, 
you’d cut down on the traffic which would relieve some of the traffic.  Mrs. Yerge r said that’s 
in the process.  Mr. Cahalan said they sent in the specs to PennDOT, and for no parking on the 
north side as you exit left, and those things are in the works along with the permission to put up 
the weight restriction signs on 412.  There are three things that are in the works.  As soon as 
PennDOT approves them, they’ll put them up.  Mrs. deLeon asked if moving the stop sign 
would be an issue.  Mr. Maxfield asked if Brien Kocher could look at the best site and evaluate 
that.  Mr. Kocher said sure.   Mr. Beardsley said putting the stop sign at the Meadows edge of 
the bridge, if people are stopped there waiting for someone to come across the bridge and they 
want to go into the Meadows, they can’t get in to the Meadows as they will block the access.   
Ms. Brown said she doesn’t like Mr. Maxfield’s idea. She’d like to address the issue he said 
about the children almost getting hit.  She’s walked Meadows Road for many years and one 
thing she wants to point out is, people just think it’s a country road and you can walk down the 
middle of it.  She doesn’t know that putting up the stop sign is going to do anything and it’s 
going to cause a back log there.  You are going to cause a lot of problems.  She came down the 
road the other day and there was an event at the Meadow’s.  By the time she hit the RR tracks 
and got to 412, she must have saw almost two dozen cars coming in off 412 and going into the 
Meadow’s.  She was at a county council meeting to voice her displeasure with the conservation 
district and ended up speaking with Mr. Stoffa about the bridge.  It’s not looking good from the 
county’s point of view that this bridge will be here that much longer.  There are so many issues 
there and she doesn’t know what the solution is.  The only solution to everything is to just 
close the road and that’s not very favorable.  All these problems are just not helping. Mr. 
Maxfield said the two girls he saw crossing the bridge were walking in the proper direction on 
the road and were tight up against the side of the bridge.  If the stop sign slows down traffic, 
that will be one part of the puzzle that will make things better.  Ms. Brown said that is 
technically a one lane bridge and you have to stay to the one side of the bridge to avoid an 
accident.  That’s where the pedestrians get squeezed.  She walks fast enough to get over the 
bridge or someone waits until she gets over it.   

ROLL CALL: 5-0 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 17 of 24 

 Mrs. deLeon asked that Jack do a phone call to the Meadows about the right hand turn. 
 

E. SAUCON VALLEY CONSERVANCY – DISCUSSSION OF HELLER HOMESTEAD 
BARN 

 
Mr. Kern said the SV Conservancy would like to discuss the barn ruins with Council.  Mrs. deLeon 
asked Leslie to put the CD on the screen to show a picture of the Heller Homestead barn.  Last 
week she was stumbling on the internet and came across the library of Congress website  She was 
actually looking for information for Meadows Road bridge and came across the thing that said 
stone barn Water Street, Hellertown, and this is the Heller Barn which was taken in 1941.  You can 
see the massive wooden barn next to it.  This was taken by Charles Dornbush, who was a 
photographer, and he was commissioned to do a survey and take pictures of the historic American 
building survey.  Somehow in 1956, they published an article based on Mr. Dornbush, 
Pennsylvania German Barn and the article included an introduction to the selection of large 
photographs of barns representative of the different types.  This is a type “E” barn and he contacted 
the speaker for their group on March 25, Mr. Bob Ensinger, professor at Kutztown University who 
wrote the follow up to Pennsylvania Barns.  This picture was in there, and what makes it unique, is 
the pent which is the little roof that goes around the front of the barn.  The book said this interior 
view of the stable portion of the barn shown on the previous page gives us a wonderful example of 
the scale of these early stone barns.   What magnificent oak trees must have existed to provide the 
huge columns and beams that span the length of the whole structure, even the cross beams which 
were carried on top of this pear structure bridges, and note the second one to the left are very long 
and very large as timbers go.  The very light slender members which their tapered caps supported 
the wide board’s side of the stalls.  The interior of such a stable area was thoroughly white washed 
annually to make it as clean looking and sanitary as our unscientific ancestors could manage.  Mr. 
Geyer lived at the Homestead in the 30’s and 40’s.  She was talking to him the other day and he 
said they used to go in the chicken coop and had a boys club and called it the Apache’s, which was 
their club house, and you could see it in the picture.  He had some fond stories.  We were very 
excited to find there was a wooden barn that companioned the stone barn and it did exist in 1956.  
With that, the Conservancy is actively trying to stabilize the barn ruins and see where that goes.  
Ian Cram, Bob Ensinger, Marcus Brandt, Kyle Datesman, and John McFarland, all have agreed to 
be on the Advisory Committee. 
 
Mr. Marcus Brandt from the Conservancy was present. He said he’s been involved with SV 
Conservancy for a long time.  This barn was in a shocking state of disrepair.  The roof had fallen 
in.  There was a nasty bulge in the wall and the pictures from the 40’s talks about the nasty bulge in 
the wall.  They’ve got some really good drawings that John McFarland drew up and have lots of 
photographs of interior and exterior, and historic documents which show them how it looked.  
We’ve got a lot to work with.  First thing they have to do is get their feet underneath them and say 
okay, we can do this.  They have to stabilize existing stone wall.  There’s a lot of good stone 
masonry there that needs to be protected from the weather.  With freeze and thaw, you will get a lot 
of loose stones on the top and you need to seal that off.  That’s what they propose to do this spring.  
They want to clean up the site and want to stabilize and cap the wall head.  They can start putting 
together the historic structures report.  They can document and put together a plan to build it up to 
the roof line, establish the roof line, build that and finish off the barn.  Skills needed to build that 
barn, he can teach anybody in this room. It looks scary, but it’s one rock on top of the other, on top 
of the other.  He’d like to put together a volunteer group to clean up the site, and to cap the wall 
heads this spring. They have a problem with liability if someone were to get hurt. How do we cover 
them or get them to release them or the Township from liability?  Is there some sort of umbrella 
package you have that might be able to be extended to cover volunteers working on this project?  
We have an estimate for about $1,500 if we were to hire professionals to come in and cap it.  The 
materials are about $300.  He’s a professional and does this sort of work all the time.  He’d be 
willing to lead the crew and do the work for the cost of the materials.  Would the township be 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 18 of 24 

willing to cough up the $300 for the sand and the lime?  If you say no, he’ll dig into is own pocket 
and do it.  Attorney Treadwell said like we’ve done with the park, we could do a waiver, but he 
doesn’t know if our policy covers that.  We’d have to call our agent.  Mrs. deLeon said the 
township owns the properties and she encourages community involvement and partnerships and we 
have the Blair House and we are talking about volunteers, but these groups can’t afford the 
insurance to cover them, so why can’t the township take out a policy to cover volunteers.  Mrs. 
Yerger said Bethlehem did a barn raising, how did they handle it?  Mr. Brandt said they crossed 
their fingers and they prayed and we were lucky nobody got hurt.  County of Lehigh owned those 
sites.  In Ohio, when there was a barn raising, they extended for the duration of the barn raising, 
their state workman’s comp policy for their works for the volunteers, which was only a two day 
exposure.  Mrs. Yerger asked what is the timeframe?  Mr. Brandt said it would be weekends and 
would be spread out over two to four years.   He’s looking at three weekends to stabilize this.  He’d 
like to work out something with Council that we can make it fly to get our feet underneath it to 
clean up the site and stabilize that stone wall this spring so we are getting some motion on this 
thing.   
 
Mr. Kern said it seems like a minor detail that could be answered by our Solicitor after a little bit of 
research.  Mr. Kern said we could spring for $300.  Mrs. Yerger said as long as it was checked out 
with PHMC and it’s fine with them.  Mr. Brandt said it’s just as stabilization and anything going 
beyond that, they have to be careful about calling PHMC.  They looked at the entire project of 
putting the barn right, if you went and paid for all the materials and labor, you’d be looking at a $2 
million project.  We’ve also identified all the places where they can get in kind donations.  In kind 
donations could easily account for three-quarters of that budget.   Mrs. deLeon would be supportive 
of the township spending the $300.  Mrs. Yerger said we need to look into the insurance.  Mr. 
Brandt said what if people signed a waiver?  Mrs. Yerger said waivers aren’t usually worth 
anything.  Attorney Treadwell said that doesn’t address the problem. That is going to make the 
volunteers even more uneasy.  Mrs. deLeon asked this be put back on the next agenda and have our 
Manager contact our insurance agent and see what it would be to cover volunteers.   Mr. Kern said 
it would be good to know for any project.  Jack Cahalan will look into this. 
 
Margie Segaline, resident, said most insurance companies offer both umbrella plan as well as an 
event by event plan.  There’s a lot of ways to approach it. Mrs. deLeon would not like to see it 
limited to weekends because volunteers aren’t always off on weekends.  Mr. Maxfield said 
according to the lease, we have to approve the work, so we need to have a narrative of the scope of 
work that’s going to be done for the records.    
 
Mrs. Yerger said maybe the SV Conservancy could do a preliminary scope of work that could be 
voted on at the next meeting.   
 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

A. APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 21, 2007 MINUTES 
 

Mr. Kern said the February 21, 2007 minutes are prepared and ready for Council’s review and 
approval. 
 
Mr. Horiszny said page 1, line 15, it should say “litigation issue against the Township “by” the 
Saruga’s, not “with” the Saruga’s.  Page 2. line 19, we should add years of between twenty-three 
and service.  Mr. Cahalan said we can’t change that, it was left out in the resolution.  Page 9, line 
29 should be IV.  Page 15, No. 6, we should title the two rows underneath Subdivision/Land 
Development.   Page 17, line 46, it should be VI.   Page 18, line 1, should be VII.   
 
 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 19 of 24 

MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved for approval of the February 21, 2007 minutes, with corrections. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-1 (Mr. Horiszny – No) 
 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Ø Margie Segaline wanted to update everyone on the “Girls Go Green” program.  She is the 
coordinator for the program.  It’s a nationwide initiative of the Girl Scout organization to celebrate 
their 95th birthday and to show the presence of Girl Scouts in the Community.  They have now 
scheduled for all the sites that were requested by both LST and the Borough of Hellertown and are 
all covered for March 31 and/or May 5, which is their rain date.  If a troop was not available for 
March 31, then she pointed out there is May 5 anyway.  Kate Brandis from the County, and Carol 
Luthar, who is a student at SV High School, are going to present an educational program at the 
beginning of that day which teaches which plants are natural to the environment and which are not 
so that the girls are not picking things we should leave alone.  The Daisy’s and Brownies will 
remain at the Heller Homestead and park area to do their assigned work and the reason being there 
is a liability issue if the leaders don’t provide car seats to ages 9 and under.  The Junior, Cadets and 
Sr. Girl Scouts will depart by carpool to their assigned work areas.  The SV Girl Scouts will 
provide snacks.  At noon, they will all stop working and break for a bag lunch, which each Girl 
Scout will have brought from home.  Some troops are working from 9 AM to noon and others have 
agreed to work the entire day.  The locations are the Heller Homestead and Park, Southeastern 
Park, Polk Valley riparian corridor, Saucon Valley School campus, Steel City Park, Lutz Franklin 
Schoolhouse, the Grist Mill area, Main Street, Dimmick Park, Silver Creek, and Hellertown 
Library.  Council said that was great.  Ms. Segaline said they qualified for a program called “Great 
PA Clean Up” and because of the size of their event, they are going to be providing for supplies for 
the day.  Mr. Cahalan said that runs through the whole period through March 31.  Any liter that is 
picked up, they will be provided with gloves and bags and just leave it at the site and Public Works  
will pick it up and take it to the landfill.  An event that qualifies under this program, there’s a 
waiver of he state fee at the disposal site and IESI asked if the township would waive the township 
host fee.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to waive the township host fee as stated above. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

Ø Mrs. deLeon said the Heller Homestead is on the list and she wants that flower beds to be done.  
Does Council need to approve this?  Mr. Maxfield said can’t we just say we approve the proposed 
work.   

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the Heller Homestead plantings on the clean up day 

delineating where the flower gardens are going to go.   
SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  Mr. Lenny Szy 
said are you going to be able to get mulch?   Mr. Cahalan will see what he can do.  He’ll talk to 
Lenny about this.   

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

Ø Ms. Stephanie Brown, resident, said she needs to go back to all her complaints.  She is having lots 
and lots of issues with her friends from Toll Bros. and the development.  She keeps going round 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 20 of 24 

and round with the Township Zoning Officer about why permits are not being posted.  She doesn’t 
see the permits posted on the properties, and she drove through tonight and there’s still no permits 
posted on any of the lots where there is building. She’d like to know why?  Attorney Treadwell 
said there’s no one sitting up here tonight that can answer that question because none of us deal 
with building permits.  That goes through Chris.  Mr. Cahalan said Chris was aware of this 
question and he did give Mr. Cahalan a response.  The permits have been issued and there’s a 
record of the permits in the township office.  All the sites she is talking about, there is a permit.  
It’s given to the developer to put in a conspicuous spot in that area.  What the practice was of that 
developer was to place it on a sign in the front of the property and they indicated because of the 
weather, they haven’t put any of those signs in the ground because of the frozen ground. Chris has 
stated that everyone of the sites has a legitimate permit that has been issued.  There isn’t any 
ordinance which says exactly where the permit must be displayed.  Ms. Brown said on the permit it 
says it must be prominently displayed in a certain area and the Township Zoning Officer is not 
following through with having the people post the permits so everyone can see them.  Mr. Cahalan 
said Chris has told him it’s not an enforcement problem.  Mr. Kern said this is not an issue for 
Council.  This is an issue for you to take up with the Manager during the day.  Mr. Maxfield said 
our Manager said he will address it with our Zoning Officer.  Ms. Brown said that’s fine.  Mrs. 
deLeon said in a new house there are no windows to put it up, then what is a person supposed to 
do.  She never gave that any thought.  Mr. Cahalan will look into this.  Ms. Brown has a problem 
with the administration as she feels she’s not being understood and she’s real frustrated.  Mr. Kern 
said there’s no resident in the township that receives more attention than you.  You receive the 
most attention of anyone in the Township.  We handled every issue you bring up consistently and 
thoroughly.  Mr. Cahalan said he doesn’t know how many times he’s said to her, and he’ll say it 
again, every issue you’ve brought into the township has been addressed and they’ve been 
responsive and prompt and they’ve been very informative about it.  He’s also said he cannot pledge 
to her that they can solve all of her problems because some of those problems are legal problems 
and private property that you have to take up with your Father.  She needs to be responsive with 
what the Township can be responsive to and what she has to follow up on.  A year ago he did a 
table on every issue she brought up and he showed her how they responded to her.  He can do that 
again, but he can state right here that every email, every visit, every phone call, she gets a response. 

Ø Ms. Stephanie Brown, resident, said she wants to talk about the bridge.  There was another incident 
with Toll Bros. going over the bridge.  She called the Police, it took 45 minutes for the Police to get 
there and the truck had left by then.  The Police called to talk to the Transportation Manager for 
Toll Bros. and the driver said they didn’t do it.  That’s about as far as it went.  She understands 
there is no policy for dealing with these overweight trucks and she’s curious to know why after a 
year and a half later, when we’re trying to save the bridge, we don’t have a policy.  If a truck is 
found, there is no policy for dealing with it.  Mr. Cahalan said that’s not an issue.  She brought that 
up a year or so ago and we indicated that did not hinder the enforcement of any overweight 
vehicles on weight restricted bridges.  As far as the police thing, you did make the report, but you 
did state to the Police that you did not see the truck cross over the bridge.  That’s a big problem as 
far as an officer going out and trying to ticket someone for going over a bridge if he has no witness 
and he has nothing to go on. Ms. Brown asked why there is no policy?  Mr. Cahalan said he doesn’t 
see where the policy has anything to do with the enforcement of overweight trucks.   You are 
talking about a process to weigh trucks to determine if they are too heavy to go over the bridge.  
That is not necessary for an officer to enforce the overweight restriction.  Mr. Cahalan said there 
have been trucks sited and they have paid a very stiff fine within the last two years.  Ms. Brown 
said the County is not happy with it and it’s an issue on saving the bridge.  Attorney Treadwell said 
the County hasn’t told the township this information.   

Ø Ms. Stephanie Brown, resident, said she wants to bring up an issue with Toll Bros. since it was 
fixed, we really didn’t have any rain until recently.  There are still problems with water from that 
detention basin flowing out of the ditches on to Meadow’s Road and ponding at the RR tracks and 
with ponding and icing.  The last issue this was brought up, Council said they were going to look 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 21 of 24 

into what they are going to do about it and she wondered if they looked at it?  Mr. Cahalan said he 
didn’t get any report on icing on Meadows Road, so he’ll have to look into it.   

Ø Ms. Stephanie Brown said Mr. Maxfield  talked  about putting the stop sign up on Meadow’s Road 
and making a no right hand turn out of the Meadows.  What about putting a stop sign there?  Mr. 
Maxfield said that’s private property and he doesn’t know how it’s addressed.  Mr. Cahalan said 
he’ll talk to the engineer about the appropriate signage we can recommend to the Meadows as they 
exit the property there.   

Ø Ms. Stephanie Brown said listening to Mr. Warner’s presentation about the bank at 378, she 
realizes he was here about variances, what about putting a traffic light at the intersection of 
Colesville Road and East Oakhurst and 378?  Mr. Cahalan said that’s Upper Saucon Township and 
a traffic study is being done. 

 
VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS 
 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 
Ø Mr. Cahalan said he’d like to recommend the appointment of Lenny Szy to the Historic 

Committee to fill the vacancy created by Barbara Ryan’s resignation.  Lenny lives on Flint 
Hill Road and has been active with the Historical Society and he’s also doing research on 
one room schoolhouses in the township. 

 
MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved for approval for Lenny Szy to the Historic Committee for a one year term 

ending December 31, 2007. 
SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
Ø Mr. Cahalan said he would like to purchase vehicles from the 2007 Capital Reserve Fund 

that were approved in the 2007 township  budget.  Those vehicles are purchase of two zero 
turn mowers at a cost of $22,000.00 through the State contract; purchase of two police 
cruisers at a cost of $51,000.00 through the State contract; purchase of a replacement 
vehicle for truck No. 7 and options in the amount of $65,000.00 through the PA CC 
contract; purchase of a replacement for the aerial truck in the amount of $150,000.00 
through the state contract sealed bid.  We’re also paying the 2007 lease payment for the 
Ford Expedition in the amount of $7,602.  The total cost of these expenditure would be 
$245,602.00 from the Capital Reserve Fund.  What they’ve been working on as a follow up 
to the budget was to look into lease options for these vehicles.  They found in talking to the 
auditors, the bank and the leasing companies that there is a $125,000.00 sealing on the 
amount they can lease.  What they’ll be doing on this is working on a lease for the 
$65,000.00 for truck No. 7 replacement so they can spread the cost of that out. 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the above as stated by the Manager. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

Ø A quick update on the bio-diesel initiative.  One of the other initiatives they want to do this 
year was to start using bio-diesel fuels in their fleet of trucks.  They’ve been following the 
award of state contracts for the delivery of bio-diesel since last summer.  The current 
situation is that we have a local distributor who delivers our fuel oil, Farm & Home.  They 
have a state contract for the delivery of fuel in Northampton County, but it’s only for truck 
transport and that’s for amounts of more than 5,000 gallons. The problem with the current 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 22 of 24 

contract is there is no supplier who has stepped forward and put in a bid to do what’s called 
“tank wagon deliveries” which are less than 5,000 gallons.  Our tank is 1,500 gallons and 
they want the fuel, but can’t find a local distributor who can deliver it to them.  The state 
did bid out for the smaller deliveries, but wound up with no bidders. They are still working 
on this.  They’ll see what they can do to put some pressure on the state. 

 
Ø With the resignation of Corporal Glenn Williams, the Police Department will be moving to 

fill that vacancy and whoever moves up, they’ll be a vacancy in the ranks of the police 
officer’s and they will be filling that.   

 
B. TOWNSHIP COUNCIL/JR. COUNCIL MEMBER 
 

Mrs. Yerger 
Ø Mrs. Yerger said Leslie made copies of the Polk Valley Park Greenway and Natural Areas 

plan.  This is a general proposal that they came up with parts of it at EAC.  The back page 
there are two typos, the names, Karen and Lisa should be struck and should be 
biologist/landscaper.  She’d like to give this to Council to look over it until the next 
meeting.  She is looking into getting funding from DCR and DEP for certain segments of 
this particular grant.  She’s looking for comments on the upper portion of the park where 
they would like to naturalize it and put trails in and reduce the amount of maintenance up 
there as they’ll be no active recreation.  She’d like it on the agenda for next meeting.   

Ø Mrs. Yerger would like Jack to write a note of thanks to Lehigh for their support in regards 
to the FAA tower.  They played a huge role in this.   

 
Mr. Maxfield 
Ø Mr. Maxfield has a question for Brien Kocher.  In a packet a while ago, there was 

something on decorative crosswalks.  What is a decorative crosswalk?  Attorney Treadwell 
said it’s probably pavers.  Instead of painting the road, they put a different type of material 
down.  Mr. Cahalan said they’ll get back to Council on this.   

 
Mr. Kern 
Ø He had a question about a suggestion from our Assistant Manager a while  back about a bar 

across the entrance of Meadows Road which we thought was a good suggestion, but 
needed more information about it and if it’s a viable option.  Mr. Kocher said they looked 
into it and the problem is they stumped everybody at PennDOT, which is where these 
regulations come from.  There are not any regulations there are on this, so he doesn’t know 
how advisable  it would be to put something on your highway that doesn’t violate 
something that doesn’t exist.  They didn’t hear back officially yet. 

Ø Mr. Kern said through the SV Partnership, and the plan they are developing … there seems 
to be a potential in the future for the possibility of the transfer of development rights to 
become an option.  Since it’s one of the limited tools the MPC provides townships to help 
mould the future of our township, he thought it would be good to explore the possibility of 
what it all means.  In order to enact the transfer of TDR, we need to have an ordinance to 
do so.  He’d like to direct our Solicitor and Staff to draft an ordinance for TDR.  Mr. 
Maxfield would also like an evaluation of our township, the goods and bads of the TDR 
transfer.  Attorney Treadwell said they can come back in two meetings with a summary 
before they actually go in and prepare the ordinance.  Mrs. Yerger said that would be great 
and she’d be more comfortable with it.   

 
Mrs. deLeon 
Ø Mrs. deLeon said in our packet we got the DEP monthly Engineer Status Report.  She’d 

like to have Jack ask Chris to check into this for their approved plan.  It says that area is 
now active.  The recycling drop off has been relocated there in order to separate the 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 23 of 24 

incoming public from the ongoing office scale construction for safety reasons.  She doesn’t 
have a problem with the concept, but when you pulled in to the landfill area, the recycling 
was in front, now they are going to be demolishing their scale house and offices to make 
room for the next cell.  This is something that should have been approved by the Township.  
They put this down in another spot.  We should look into this.  Mr. Cahalan said okay. 

Ø Mrs. deLeon said on page 4, offsite bio-remediated soils as cover material, does anyone 
know what that means?  Mr. Maxfield said it could be treated sewage.  Mr. Cahalan can 
call Lauressa and check into this and call DEP o find out what bio-remediated soil is?  Mr. 
Kern said Chrin introduced sludge into the landfills and that’s what creates the odors off of 
Chrin, which IESI, up until now, hasn’t been doing.   

Ø Mrs. deLeon said Lee Weidner wanted to come to the meeting tonight and was not able to.  
He asked her to read something to Council.  “LST Council:  he wants to talk about the 
intersection of East Walnut Street and Constitution Avenue and the residents of Linda 
Dudash, SV High School and SV Middle School students, Sue Munsch, crossing guard; 
Hellertown Police, LS Police; SV School District Administrators and the School Board and 
Linda Dudash neighbors”.  Continuing problems since at least September 22, 2006 when 
Sue Munsch, Crossing Guard wrote a letter to Todd Gombos, Pamela Bernardo, Ralph 
Puerto, Robert Ballum, Richard Fluck and Guy Lesser expressed the hazardous conditions 
for students at dismissal time especially in good weather.  Sue Munsch was hit by a snow 
ball, student motorists go through double stop sign, and at times Sue’s hand held stop sign, 
parent motorist fail to stop at stop signs, BB gun shootings originating from Dudash house, 
students climbing on her roof, Principal Gombos referring to corner as “Marlboro 
Country”, students congregating on sidewalk interrupting pedestrian passage, intimidation 
of elementary students, neighbors afraid for their property, students crossing at wrong 
unmarked areas, 30 or more students loitering, students crossing back to board elementary 
buses, students riding skate boards and bikes around intersection, students foul language 
and cigarette smoke, high school students sharing cigarettes with middle school students 
and to quote Sue Munsch, “I am working on a job that is hazardous to my health, I’m 
asking for support in rectifying these concerns”.  Todd Gombos and David Labosky make 
frequent appearances, Chief Ballum makes frequent visits.  Grandparents advise the 
students that their behavior is okay as long as they stay on their property.  Mrs. deLeon said 
we talked a little bit about this at our partnership meeting.  She doesn’t recall in the fall 
getting this letter.  Mr. Cahalan said the letter that is attached from Susan Munsch, he did 
share it with the partnership.  Mrs. deLeon said how can we rectify this situation legally?  
Mr. Cahalan said when this came up at the partnership, the problem that was described was 
that the students were loitering and smoking on this private property, which is in 
Hellertown Borough.  The supervision of the school crossing guards is up to Chief Balum 
and Hellertown Borough.  He and Chief Lesser have met with the school administrators 
and this subject has been discussed with them.  What was recommended to the partnership 
was that the Borough considered a borough wide smoking ban to cover this problem and he 
doesn’t know if it was brought up by Borough Council with any action.  Attorney 
Treadwell said the agreement we have with the Borough puts them in charge of the 
crossing guard program.  Mr. Cahalan said he will put this on the SVP agenda.  Tell Lee to 
come to the partnership meeting next week.  Mrs. deLeon would like a little  report for 
Wednesday about the stop signs.  Mr. Cahalan will check into this and pass it on to the 
Chief.   

 
Mr. Horiszny 
Ø Mr. Horiszny is going to the Lehigh Valley Ag Conference and will give a report if he 

finds out anything good. 
 
 
 



General Business Meeting  
March 7, 2007 
 

Page 24 of 24 

Jr. Council Member 
Ø Ms. Segaline said the paper recycling program is going well.  The Middle School is 

winning.  The schools have over three tons of paper. 
Ø The SAT’s will be given to the Juniors of SV on Saturday and then they will go until the 

next week. 
Ø The animal food bank is going well.  Last month they gave food to over 80 animals. 
Ø The production of “Footloose” was performed this past weekend.  Everything went really 

well and it was a great experience for her to be in this play.  Mrs. deLeon said the play was 
great.   

  
C. SOLICITOR 

Nothing to report 
 

D. ENGINEER 
Nothing to report 
 

E. PLANNER 
Nothing to report 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to adjourn.  The time was 10:55 PM. 
SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Kern asked if anyone in the audience had any questions or comments?  No one raised their 
hand. 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
___________________________________   __________________________________ 
Mr. Jack Cahalan      Glenn Kern     
Township Manager      President of Council 
 


